
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

• 
 
 

 

 

 

• 
 

 
 

 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

• 



 

 

 

 

 

• 
- 

- 



 

• 
- 

 

 

• 
- 

- 
- 

 

 

• 
- 

 

 

• 
- 

- 

- 

 

 



 

• 
- 

- 

- 
- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 

• 
- 

- 



 

• 
- 

- 

- 

- 
- 
- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 



 



 



 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

o 
o 

o 
o 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 















         





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 

         



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 



 

 



 



 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 



 



 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

Name:  Cathy Maxwell 

Date: June 22, 2020 

Date of Last Council Meeting Attended:  May 25, 2020 

Date of Last Council Advisory Meeting 
Attended:  

June 8, 2020 

Date of Last Governance Session Attended:  

Committee Meeting Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Committee Synopsis 

May 28, 2020 
Scholarship and Bursary 

Committee 

This committee which includes myself, 

Mrs Wendy Hood and Mrs Marina 

DeWolfe ( all retired teachers) met and 

determined this year’s recipients of the 

TOK awards. This year the Nola Folker 

Hill Award was shared ($750 each) by 

Katherine Myers and William Watts. The 

other three awards for $500 each went 

to, Crew Bailey, Kailey Bennett and Aiden 

Bradley 

June 19, 2020 Police Commission Meeting See Chair Gerrard’s report 

Town of Kentville Event Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Event Synopsis 

May 26, 2020 CAO Evaluation (6mo)  

May 29, 2020 Budget Finalization  

June 6, 2020 
Black Lives Matter Walk for 

Justice 

A very well attended event despite the 

rain. I was very impressed with the 

organization and the  fact that 95% at 

least had masks on! 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

June 17, 2020 
Public Hearing for Stoneridge 

Development 
This was a rezoning hearing 

 



 

Name:  Cate Savage  

Date: June 24h  

Date of Last Council Meeting Attended:  May 25th  

Date of Last Council Advisory Meeting 
Attended:  

June 8th  

Committee Meeting Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Committee Synopsis 

May 26th  Meeting with council (in camera)  Discuss CAO Evaluation  

May 29th Budget meeting  Finalize capital budget discussions 

 June 2nd  CAO Evaluation 

Mayor Snow and myself delivered the CAO 

evaluation – the evaluation included 
discussions with staff (directors) and council 

who opted to partake in the evaluation as 
they saw fit. This was a 6 month evaluation 

only.   

June 10th  IAC  

End of April 2020 – portfolio down -3.47%. 
Discussions continued around revamping our 

portfolio while respecting but slightly 

revamping our IAP. Portfolio balance north of 
13 million.  

June 17th  
Public Hearing – Stone Ridge R2-

R3  

Calls were responded to via Economic 
Development Officer Lindsay Young who 

hosted the meeting and for a first zoom 

interactive meeting managed to capture the 
spirit of the calls and requests for folks to 

speak. Democracy at it’s best. Thanks Lindsey 
and thanks to all the resident who called in to 

express their concerns …views and wishes fod 

the project.  

June 18th  Regional Sewer Committee 

Asset management plan is a work in progress.  

Operations update – Ponds in good shape – 
Cloration is good. The new aeration is a help 

in this regard.  

With regards to compliance – pepsico is 
offside and they are being dealt with. 

More discussions around the sludge project: 
Design project 2021 – construction 2022 -  

Conference and Trip Attendance and Synopsis  

Date Conference/Travel Synopsis 

   



 

Town of Kentville Event Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Event Synopsis 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Committee Meeting Synopsis – Completed by Committee Representative only 

Detail Synopsis 

Committee Name  
Meeting 
Date: 

 

Meeting 
Highlights: 

 

Budget: 
 

New Projects: 
 

Policy Changes: 
 

 
 

Misc Events 

Date Synopsis 

  



 

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

  

 



 

 



 



 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

Name:  Sandra Snow 

Date: 24 June 2020 

Date of Last Council Meeting Attended:  8 June 2020 

Date of Last Council Advisory Meeting 
Attended:  

9 March 2020 

Date of Last Governance Session Attended: N/A 

Committee Meeting Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Committee Synopsis 

21 May 20 VREN Board Meeting 
COVID 19 protocols, update of Regional 
Task Force 

22 May 20 Engage NS Quality of Life 
Conversation with Local Leadership Team 
and how we move forward with COVID-
19 limitations 

25 May 20 Valley Waste IMSA Action – update by Mayor Muttart 

26 May 20 Atlantic PACE 
Discussion on the application to FCM and 
go forward business model 

26 May 20 CAO Committee Review input for 6 month evaluation 

27 May 20 NSFM Mayors and CAO 

1. NSFM Update – Pam Mood  
a. Code of conduct 
b. Election 
c. broadband 

2. Adjournment 

28 May 20 Valley REN Regional Recovery Taskforce Discussion 

29 May 20 Budget – Capital 
Capital Budget Update based on Council 
input from 19 May meeting – budget 
passed 

2 Jun 20 CAO Committee CAO 6-month eval 

3 Jun 20 NSFM Mayors and CAO 
1. NSFM Update – Pam Mood –  
2. Questions 
3. Adjournment 

8 Jun 20 Atlantic PACE 
Discussion on the application to FCM and 
go forward business model 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

9 Jun 20 Contracted Fire Services 
Discussion with 14 Wing Executive and 
Camp Aldershot CO 

10 Jun 20 Atlantic PACE 
Discussion with PACE Atlantic CIC on 
Kentville model and funding 

10 Jun 20 
Investment Advisory 
Committee 

May 12 Fund Value: $13,080,574 
Jun 8 Fund Value: $13,492,497 

10 Jun 20 Kings Mayors 

Economic recovery of the region 
Major issues facing each Municipality 
Changes to assessment based on income 
for some commercial properties 
(hotels/malls) 

10 Jun 20 NSFM Mayors and CAO 

1. NSFM Update – Pam Mood –  
2. Deputy Minister Dean 

3. Deputy Minister MacLellan 
4. Update on Liberal caucus meeting 
5. Adjournment 

11 Jun 20 Valley REN Regional Recovery Taskforce Discussion 

15 Jun 20 VREN – Audit Committee 
Review of audit documentation for 
FY19/20 

15 Jun 20 MFC – Board Meeting AGM and Spring Debenture approval 

16 Jun 20 KVFD Chief Fire Services 

16 Jun 20 Engage NS Quality of Life 
Conversation with Local Leadership 
Teams from across the province  

17 Jun 20 Public Hearing Rezoning for Stoneridge from R2 to R3 

24 Jun 20 NSFM Mayors and CAO 

1. NSFM Update – Pam Mood  

a. COVID lost revenue 
2. MP Andy Fillmore 
3. Deputy Minister MacLellan 
4. Adjournment 
 

Town of Kentville Event Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Event Synopsis 

22 May 20 Municipal Wellness Day 
Walkabout to Town Departments to thank 
staff for work over the COVID-19 lock 
down 



Councilor Report 
Kentville Town Council 

 

22 May 20 
AVCC Business Development 
Business Meeting 

Economic Recovery – with MP Kody Blois 

Conference Attendance and Synopsis 

Date Conference Synopsis 

Misc Events 

Date Synopsis 

22 May 20 Morning Show with Darrin Harvey – Krock  

28 May 20 Telecon with MP Kody Blois 

8 Jun 20 Drop off letters to KCA for Grade 8 Graduates 

11 Jun 20 
Meeting with Kathy Boutelier wrt NKEC Grade 12 graduation and support 
from Town of Kentville 

17 Jun 20 Kings County Senior Safety AGM 2020 

19 Jun 20 
Certificate of retirement presentation to Thelma Gee at Headliner Studio 
for 50 years of work as a Hairdresser, Salon Owner, Chair Renter,  
and above all Friend to her many clients in Kentville 

19 Jun 20 
65th Wedding Anniversary Certificate presented to Gord and Hazel Gould, 
long-time residents of Kentville 

22 Jun 20 
Meeting with Kathy Boutelier wrt NKEC Grade 12 graduation and support 

from Town of Kentville 

23 Jun 20 Telecon Paul Pineo 

23 Jun 20 Flowercart AGM 

 



From: Jaimie Corbin <JaimieCorbin@hotmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, June 16, 2020 12:22 PM 
To: Kelly Rice <krice@kentville.ca> 
Subject: Mural Proposal 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

Hello Kelly, 
 
I have been talking to Sandra Snow for over a year about my desire to paint a mural on 
the side of the Rec Building facing New Minas. The mural concept was to honor the 
hard work and dedication that Bryan Gibson has offered to our community over the past 
30 years. He has given selflessly to being a boxing coach and has helped many 
misguided youths find a way to channel their inner anger (myself included). He was an 
Olympian in the 1976 summer Olympics, and is one of the greatest men I have known. 
A few months ago, I was talking to him and he had stated that he is about to retire the 
club. This means the end of an era, and I would very much like to move forward on this 
if there is an opportunity to do so.  
 
I talked to Cate Savage and she told me to reach out to you to start the ball moving in 
the right direction.  
 

Jaimie L. Peerless 
Co-Owner / Manager 
Phantom Effects  
www.phantomeffects.com 
Phantom's FreakShow Haunted House 
www.phantomsfreakshow.com 
 
Web Developer, Educational Platform 
creo™ (Comprehensive Research Education Online)  
www.creohealtheducation.ca 
 
IWK Research Services PR & Design 
www.iwk.nshealth.ca/research/research-iwk 

 
Web Developer, Educational Platform 
MicroResearch International Online Education  
www.microresearch-international.ca 
 

 
 

mailto:JaimieCorbin@hotmail.com
mailto:krice@kentville.ca
http://www.phantomeffects.com/
http://www.phantomsfreakshow.com/
http://www.creohealtheducation.ca/
http://www.iwk.nshealth.ca/research/research-iwk
http://www.microresearch-international.ca/




 

 

 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐

☐ ☐ ☐

☐ ☐ ☐

☐ ☐ ☐

☐ ☐

☐ ☐

☐ ☐



 





 
  

 

Page 1 of 2 

         
TO:   COUNCIL 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Dave Bell, Director of Engineering & PW 
 
DATE:   June 29, 2020 

SUBJECT:         Town Hall Renovations – Security improvements and COVID-19  
 

 
ORIGIN The reopening of Town Hall requires a medical barrier (COVID-19, etc.) 

and it is felt that a more permanent solution than hanging plexiglass be 
considered that also incorporates recommendations for a recent KPS 
security audit. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND A security audit conducted by KPS recommended that public access to 

restricted areas of Town Hall such as Finance, IT, upstairs offices, 
council chambers, etc. be limited and granted by a staffed reception 
desk in Finance. These renovations would also provide a medical 
barrier (COVID-19, etc.) for staff that frequently interact with the public 
at both the Finance and Recreation reception areas. 

 
 
 
DISCUSSION Jost Architects were commissioned to design tender ready drawings 

and specifications for the proposed improvements to the Finance and 
Recreation reception areas.  This also includes construction estimates. 

 
 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS N/A 
 
 
 
BUDGET IMPLICATION Jost Architects construction estimate is expected on Friday June 26th  

which I will forward to Council and discuss in detail during Monday’s 
Council meeting. 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS Drawings and Estimates are expected by the end of the day on Friday 

which I will review and present to Council on Monday. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION That based on the submitted report, plans, and estimates that Council 

approve the tender of security and medical barrier renovations to the 
Finance and Recreation reception areas. 

 



 
  

 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Kentville Decision Wheel: 
 

 
 



































































































































 

Town of Kentville  

Annual Report  
March 31, 2020 

354 Main Street 

Kentville NS B4N 1K6 

www.kentville.ca 



 

at a glance 

6,271 

Population (2016) 

0.5° C 

Average 

Temperature Winter 

$232,894 

Average Value of 

Owned Dwelling  

$56,909 

Median Household 

Income  

(2016) 

3,051 

Dwelling Units  

(2019) 

Annual Report 2020          Page 2 

17.35 km² 

Geographic Area 

23.5° C 

Average Temperature 

Summer 

45.4 

Median Age 

10.3% 

Unemployment Rate 

(Q 1 2020) 



Annual Report 2020          Page 3 

Town of Kentville 

Annual Report 
 

This report provides a variety of information about the Town of Kentville and its oper-

ations.  It is followed by the audited consolidated financial statements of the Town for 

the year ended March 31, 2020.   

Town of Kentville Government 

The Town of Kentville was incorporated on May 1, 1886.  Kentville, nestled in the 

centre of the Annapolis Valley in Nova Scotia, has a population of 6,271 (2016 cen-

sus).  As the largest town in the Annapolis Valley, it serves as the professional centre 

for legal, financial and medical services.  A large array of businesses, unique shops 

and eateries offer a variety of services to its ever-growing population.  Blessed with 

an incredible quality of life, residents enjoy the benefits of living in a smaller-sized 

community- yet on the doorstep of such amenities as an internationally-recognized 

university and the capital city of Nova Scotia.   Kentville residents enjoy a safe, vi-

brant and friendly town, a safe drinking water system, exemplary protective services, 

a multitude of recreational facilities, a walking trail system and a state-of-the-art ele-

mentary school complex, among other features. 

The Town is governed by a council consisting of a mayor and six councillors, elected 

“at large” every four years. Council is the policy-forming and decision-making body 

representing the interests of its residential and corporate citizens. The Town draws 

its authority from the Municipal Government Act which mandates the Town to pro-

vide municipal services within its boundaries.  The next municipal election will occur 

in October 2020. 



Annual Report 2020          Page 4 

Kentville offers programs that serve the interests of the public– such as: 

 

 Legislative services 

 Administrative, Corporate and Financial services 

 Protective services 

 Transportation services 

 Environmental services 

 Planning services 

 Recreation, parks and cultural services 

 

With our government and community partners Kentville also provides: 

 Assessment services* 

 Education services* 

 Correction services* 

 Library services* 

 Social housing services* 

 Community economic development services 

 Public transit services 

 Fire fighting services 

 Fire and building inspection services 

 Solid waste management services 

 

*Provincial mandatory expenditures 



Annual Report 2020          Page 5 

“Kentville is a healthy, vibrant, integrated and complete 

community where citizens can live, work and play in an 

environment that supports a high quality of life”. 

     (Endorsed by Town Council July 15, 2009) 

Vision Statement 

 Notes of Interest 

• The Town welcomed a new Chief Administrative Officer in November 2019.  Kelly Rice 

comes to the Town with over 20 years of experience in municipal government. 

• The Town welcomed a new engineer in October 2019.  David Bell, P. Eng. came to us 

from the private sector with extensive experience in civil engineering. 

• Weatherwise, 2019 saw more than its fair share of heavy rain storms beginning June 21, 

continuing into August with post tropical storm Erin and Hurricane Dorian in early Sep-

tember. Some roads & parks were damaged, which have been reinstated. A Provincial 

disaster recovery program is available. The Town will be quantifying its repairs for possi-

ble claim. 

• The last quarter of 19/20 was disrupted with the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic.  Nova 

Scotia issued a State of Emergency on March 22, 2020 to prevent the spread of COVID-

19 within the Province. The State of Emergency is extended to June 28, 2020; however 

the Province is slowing re-opening for business, per Provincial guidelines.  



Economic Snapshot– Provincial/Regional 

For 2019, Nova Scotia saw the strongest economic growth since 2010 thanks to strong 

gains in construction, manufacturing, real estate and healthcare. However, the outlook for 

Nova Scotia’s economy  changed significantly since the end of 2019. Beginning early 2020,  

the Province has been dealt a one-two punch from the COVID-19 pandemic and plummet-

ing oil prices.  The hit from the virus has been widespread with the greatest impact expected 

to occur in the first half of the year. However,  the oil-producing economies will face a more 

sustained pressure in 2020 due to price wars between producers. Canada’s provinces were 

already under pressure from the decline in global trade activity as the US/China trade spat 

intensified and China’s ban on some Canadian agricultural products, along with US tariffs 

on softwood lumber affected exports.  Therefore, the Atlantic Provinces are forecast to gear 

down in 2020.  There will be weak capital investment in the Atlantic region with only Nova 

Scotia  seeing a rise, driven by private sector companies.  Nova Scotia is also likely to con-

tend with lower exports to China.  Still, public spending will provide some support albeit at a 

slower pace of 0.5%. 

Economic indicators1: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1
Source: RBC Economics Research, June 2020  (* - % change unless otherwise indicated)   

 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 6 

Forecast Detail*– Nova Scotia 2019 2020F 2021F 

Real GDP 2.1 -5.5 3.8 

Employment 2.2 -5.2 

 

4.9 

Unemployment rate (%) 7.2 10.1 8.4 

Housing starts (units) 4.7 3.8 3.4 

Retail sales 2.7 -5.5 4.0 

CPI 1.6 0.4 1.6 



Economic Snapshot– Provincial/Regional   

Stats Canada reported in January that the labour force in the Annapolis Valley  improved 

over the past year, though to a more moderate extent than other regions.
 

However, due to COVID-19, social distancing orders were in place everywhere and directly 

disrupted big chunks of the Province's economy.  Highly impacted industries like retail trade, 

transportation services, education, arts and recreation and food and accommodation ser-

vices generally account for roughly one-third of the jobs and between 20-25 % of provincial 

GDP.  Business closures, massive layoffs and reduced working hours for those still em-

ployed generated additional knock-on effects for other sectors– leading to further job losses 

and deepening the economic contraction.  2020 will mark the steepest one-year decline in 

all provinces.  The eventual easing of social distancing orders will set the stage for a broad 

based recovery. Nova Scotia is one of only three provinces not to impose a full lockdown on 

non-essential businesses.  This has limited the economic damage of COVID-19.  A gradual 

recovery is expected to take hold with softness in tourism, manufacturing and construction 

slowing the pace.  The Nova Scotia government began to partially lift restrictions on May 1, 

2020. 

Economic Snapshot– Local 

For Kentville,  114 permits were issued in 2019/20 and totalled $18,175,282 (18/19–124  

permits issued; value $5,936,995). Property sales in assessment dollars (over $1)  for 

Kentville  are as follows
2
: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            

     

 

 

2Source: PVSC, March 2020 

Annual Report 2020          Page 7 

Year Value in Assessment Dollars 

2019 $41,530,019 

2018 $30,162,594 

2017 $38,318,020 

2016 $22,042,137 

2015 $16,437,126 



Annual Report 2020          Page 8 

Financial Management and Control Programs 

The major components of the Town’s financial management and control programs include 

the budget process, accounting procedures, independent external audit, capital financing 

practices, financial and investment policies, some of which are described below.  

The Budget Process 

Council has the authority under the Municipal Government Act (MGA) to allocate funds 

through the  budget process.  It is a challenge to balance the competing needs for service 

delivery, our high standard of service delivery, fluctuating property assessments and reve-

nue streams, while maintaining stability in the  tax rates.  

Yearly, Town Council considers a current operating budget along with a 5-year capital in-

vestment plan. Town Council formally adopts the operating budget and capital program for 

the immediate year. The budgets are divided into the various programs which provide ser-

vice delivery to residential and corporate citizens.   The budget process involves elected offi-

cials, the Chief Administrative Officer, Department Heads, Town personnel and the public.   

Council’s goal is to provide exemplary services at a reasonable cost to the residential and 

corporate citizen and, therefore, it sets the standards and guidelines for the budget process 

after considering Provincial legislation, servicing needs, policy changes and public expecta-

tions. Staff make recommendations to revise service levels or to change revenues in order 

to meet Council’s targets on the tax levies. Prior to Council’s final ratification, public input is 

sought and considered in the decision-making process.   

Revenue is derived from property taxation, user fees, conditional and unconditional grants 

from upper levels of government and capital contributions from outside parties.  Sufficient 

revenues must be raised to provide the service delivery as determined by Town Council. 



Municipalities, by law,  are not permitted to budget for operating surpluses or deficits, and, 

should a deficit occur through the course of business, it is recovered through the next year’s 

operating budget. 

Once the budget is finalized, service is provided and revenue is collected.  Expenditures are 

controlled against the budget by formal financial, purchasing and human-resource policies 

and financial systems designed to prevent budget overruns. Each senior manager directs 

the department’s service delivery and ensures that the Town’s policy statements (as noted 

above) are followed. Once the budget is ratified,  internal financial reporting to Town Council 

is tabled at the monthly Council Advisory Committee meeting.  The reports include an  in-

come statement and, for the last six months of the fiscal year, a projection report for the 

Town’s Operating fund.  Reports on the Town’s water utility and sanitary sewer area service 

are tabled quarterly and coincide with each quarterly billing. 

Financial Management 

The Town’s accounting system and internal controls are maintained by management and 

designed to provide reasonable assurance that financial records are complete and accurate 

and that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition. To that 

end, Finance personnel are properly trained in their respective job functions and a well-

defined separation of duties, responsibilities and accountability exists.  The Town of 

Kentville follows Canadian public sector accounting standards for local governments when 

recording its financial information, as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board 

of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (CPA).  The outcome furnishes finan-

cial records that are reliable for the preparation of financial statements. Kentville continues 

its tradition of operating a well-managed organization.  Management’s ability to achieve its 

Annual Report 2020          Page 9 



Annual Report 2020          Page 10

financial outcomes is a result of consistent, dependable budgetary performance and timely 

financial reporting. 

External Independent  Audit 

 

On an annual basis, the Town of Kentville is required by the Municipal Government Act to 

engage an external independent municipal audit firm to express an opinion as to whether 

the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement and that the consoli-

dated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the operating results and 

financial position of the Town of Kentville at the end of each fiscal year.   The external inde-

pendent audit firm has free access to all records of the Town and, as required, they meet 

with Town personnel to discuss any matters that arise during the course of the audit en-

gagement. Annually, the external independent auditor also provides  the Town  with an in-

ternal control findings letter, which speaks to the adequacy of the Town’s internal con-

trols.  As a minimum, the external independent auditor meets with the Town’s Audit Com-

mittee yearly when the draft financial statements are presented to the Audit Committee.  

The Audit Committee is comprised of the Mayor and two councillors, along with two citizen 

appointees.  The Chief Administrative Officer and Director of Finance are ex officio and at-

tend as resource.  

While an external opinion is sought, the Town’s management is responsible for the prepara-

tion of the financial statements and the integrity and objectivity of the financial information 

and the representations contained in the financial statements.   

Capital Financing  

Every year, Kentville completes many capital projects which meet not only its growth needs 

but also its need to renew aging infrastructure.  Financing for these initiatives includes a 



combination of “pay-as-you-go” via cash reserve funds, contributions from outside interest-

ed parties and debt issuances.  The Town has adopted a strategy to maintain its annual 

debt issuances to one million dollars (or less) and it has increased funding from its cash re-

serves to finance capital acquisitions. 

The long-term debt-servicing practice of Town Council has been to maintain the 5-year av-

erage debt service ratio at between 10-12% of own-source revenue.  This self-imposed cap 

could affect future capital investment plans and the number of projects undertaken each 

year,  but, in the long run,  it will ensure that debt servicing (via the tax rates) is kept at man-

ageable levels while ensuring that infrastructure is acquired or renewed. 

Perpetual Investment Fund 

The Town is in a “net financial asset” position created by funds invested according to the 

Town’s Special Perpetual Reserve Fund Investment Policy.  These funds were derived 

from the sale of the Kentville Electric Commission to Nova Scotia Power Inc. in 1997.  Ten 

million dollars of the proceeds were sheltered from day-to-day spending by the Nova Scotia 

Legislature via local Bill. No 20  – The Town of Kentville and Kentville Electric Commission 

Sale of Assets Act, assented to June 29, 1998.  The Special Perpetual Reserve is unique 

in that it invests in equity stock, fixed income securities and other money-market vehicles.  

The objectives of the investment fund are preservation of capital, conformance with Federal, 

Provincial and other legal requirements, diversification to avoid unreasonable risks and at-

tainment of a market rate of return that reflects the risk profile of the portfolio and investment 

plan.  The Town’s Special Perpetual Reserve Fund Investment Policy received full ap-

proval of the Minister for Department of Municipal Affairs, as per MGA 100 (b) (obtained 

March 25, 2004).  This fund is managed by an Investment Advisory Committee consisting 

of two knowledgeable citizen appointees and a member of Town Council (a second Council 

Annual Report 2020          Page 11



Annual Report 2020          Page 12

member is appointed as an alternate).  The Chief Administrative Officer and the Director of 

Finance sit ex officio.  The Fund is administered by an external financial advisor, whose 

term is for a four-year period. A Request for Proposals for Investment Advisory Services is 

released every four years on the Provincial Procurement web portal.  In 2018, the Invest-

ment Advisory Committee revised its Investment Policy, which was ratified by Town Coun-

cil on May 28, 2018. Provincial endorsement from the Minister for Municipal Affairs was re-

ceived on June 21, 2018. 

Since 1999, $10.8  million has been transferred to the Town’s operating fund, while $1.9 

million retired long-term debt related to the Electric Commission and $ 819 thousand was 

transferred to the Town’s capital reserve fund.  As at March 31, 2020, the market value of 

the Special Perpetual Reserve Fund was $12,499,494 (2019- $12,955,710). 

The Assessment Process  

 

Property Valuation Services Corporation (PVSC) determines the assessment value of 

properties, as legislated by the Province of Nova Scotia Assessment Act.  This organization 

is owned by the municipalities of the Province of Nova Scotia and municipalities are man-

dated to provide its funding.  In general, the assessment service and its relationship to prop-

erty taxation is not understood by the taxpayers.  The Town of Kentville must use the as-

sessment records (as provided by PVSC) in its calculation of tax levies.  In Nova Scotia, 

since 2005,  residential and resource  assessment increases are CAPped each year at the 

CPI for Nova Scotia for the month of October, as posted by Statistics Canada.  The CAP 

system was imposed to protect property owners from  “sudden and dramatic increases” in 

the market value of their property.  For 2019/20, the CAP was 2.9%.  The CAP eligibility cri-

teria can be found on the PVSC website at www.pvsc.ca. 



Results of the Year Ended March 31, 2020 

 

The Town of Kentville provided services  to residential and corporate citizens through its op-

erating departments and also continued to renew and remediate the Town’s  infrastructure 

by investing in capital building, some of which included continuation of the sidewalk in the 

west end of Town, renewals of several storm sewers, renewal of several heavily-travelled 

streets, the purchases of equipment for several departments and the completion of two Rec-

reation studies. 

Some key highlights were: 

 In 2019/20 the total Residential tax rate was increased nearly 2 cents (1.3%). 

 In 2019/20 the total Commercial tax rate remained stable. 

 Total taxable assessment growth April 1, 2019 (net of cap and adjustments) was 2.5%. 

 CAP on Residential and Resource assessments (set by the Province) was 2.9%. 

 Water rate charges remained stable for all users of the utility, as authorized by the No-

va Scotia Utility and Review Board. 

 Sanitary sewer charges remained stable for all users of the service, as authorized by 

Town Council. 

 As at March 31, 2020, the Town of Kentville General Operating Fund recorded a non-

consolidated surplus of $149,734 (2019-$24,805). The entire surplus was transferred 

to the Town’s operating reserve fund, as per DMA guidelines. 

 The Sanitary Sewer Area Service reported a non-consolidated surplus of $199,058 

(2019-$NIL), before the entire surplus was transferred to its operating reserve, as per 

DMA guidelines, and 

 The Kentville Water Utility Operating Fund recorded a non-consolidated surplus of 

$6,501 (2019-$10,200). 

 At March 31, 2020, the consolidated PSAS-compliant annual surplus is $1,663,566 

(2019- $448,052). 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 13



FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Financial Reporting Model 

The objectives of financial statements are to describe to the reader the organization’s financial 

position, the results of its operations and how the sources for its various activities have been de-

rived and consumed.  Our statements provide information about the economic resources, obliga-

tions and accumulated surplus of the Town.  While similar to financial statements of private sector 

organizations, the Town’s financial statements are different, accounting for its unique aspects. 

The following are the primary statements prepared by all governments: 

 

As noted in the table above, the Statements are “consolidated”, which means, in the Town of 

Kentville’s case,  that all resources and operations under the control of the Town are reflected in 

the data.  This includes all departments of the Town, the Sanitary Sewer Area Service, the 

Kentville Water Utility and Special Reserve Funds. A description of the funds is as follows: 

Funds 

A fund is a grouping of self-balancing accounts used to report on resources that have been segre-

gated for a specific purpose.  These funds are created and managed to ensure that the Town is 

compliant with legislation and financial requirements. 

 

The General Operating Fund reports on taxation and rate-supported operations– the day-to-

day operations of the Town.  This includes policing services, fire services, transportation services, 

planning services, recreational services, sanitary sewer services and legislative and administrative 

services.    

Annual Report 2020          Page 14

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Provides information to describe a government’s finan-

cial position in terms of its assets and liabilities as at 

the end of the reporting period.  Net financial position 

and accumulated surplus are important factors in deter-

mining the government’s financial well-being. 

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accu-

mulated Surplus 

Provides accountability information for a government’s 

current-period operations and the related government 

objectives for the reporting period.  It also denotes the 

change in accumulated surplus. 

Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Finan-

cial Assets (Debt) 

Provides accountability information regarding the ex-

tend to which expenditures made in the period are met 

by the revenues recognized in the current period. 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Provides information about the impact of a govern-

ment’s activities on its cash resources for the current 

period. 



The General Capital Fund reports on the acquisition of capital assets such as the building of 

streets, sidewalks, storm sewers, for example.  It also quantifies related short and long-term bor-

rowing as well as amortization of capital assets. 

 

The Kentville Water Commission Operating Fund reports on the daily operations of the water 

utility, as funded by water rates approved by Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board. 

 

The Kentville Water Commission Capital Fund cites acquisition of its capital assets (wells, 

transmission and distribution lines).  This fund also accounts for related short and long-term bor-

rowing as well as depreciation of capital assets. 

 

The Reserve Funds are separated into Operating Reserves and Capital Reserves. These funds 

accumulate past operating surpluses of the Town, Sanitary Sewer Area Service  and Water Utility.   

 

The Operating Reserves (Town, Sanitary Sewer and Water) are akin to  “savings” accounts and 

house the past surpluses of the aforementioned operating entities.   These reserves provide sta-

bility in  property tax rates and utility rates by offsetting unexpected operating expenditures, a 

current deficit position or to pay for an unexpected opportunity.  

 

The Capital Reserves (Town, Sanitary Sewer and Water) are also savings accounts but used for 

capital acquisition purposes.  They can be used to finance current and/or future years’ capital 

procurements for the Town, Sanitary Sewer Area Service and the Water Utility, thereby reducing 

reliance on long-term borrowing.  Capital reserve funds are also utilized to fund unexpected capi-

tal infrastructure needs– such as a substantial water break.  Also, contributions from outside 

sources for capital acquisitions may be contained in the reserve banks until the asset is acquired. 

 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 15



FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (A-3) 

This statement provides details on the Town’s financial position at the end of the fiscal year.  This information 

can be used to evaluate the Town’s ability to finance its activities and meet its obligations.  The statement 

also identifies the Town’s ability to provide future services.  The Town separates the statement into “net fi-

nancial resources” and “non-financial assets”.  The financial resources include cash, receivables, land held 

for sale and investments. The Town has obligations to meet (liabilities), that use up the financial resources.  

The difference between financial assets and liabilities is the measure of the Town’s “net financial asset” posi-

tion and describes the Town’s ability to meet its obligations at March 31. (A “net debt” position would indicate the future 

revenues are required to pay the liabilities at end of March.)   

Non-financial assets include tangible capital assets and prepaid expenses of the Town.  Capital assets are 

acquired to provide service delivery over the course of many years. They do not provide revenue for opera-

tions (hence are “non-financial” in nature).  The accumulated surplus is the sum total of all surpluses and def-

icits of the Town since its inception.  The accumulated surplus position signifies the Town’s total economic 

resources–financial and physical- the amount by which all assets exceed all liabilities.  The accumulated sur-

plus also indicates the Town has resources (financial and non-financial) that can be used to provide services 

for years to come.     

As at March 31, 2020, the Town statements report: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 16

 2020 

$ 

2019 

$ 

Variance 

$ 

Cash and cash equivalents 7,361,730 6,447,675 914,055 

Investments 13,265,260 13,121,662 143,598 

Financial assets 20,626,990 19,569,337 1,057,653 

Liabilities 9,511,263 10,353,756 (842,493) 

Net (financial) assets 11,115,727 9,215,581 1,900,146 

Non–financial assets 42,312,931 42,549,511 (236,580) 

Accumulated surplus 53,428,658 51,765,092 1,663,566 

Fund Net revenues (expenses) 

 $ 

General Operating (before Δ pre-paids) 1,154,710 

General Capital  (1,757,943) 

Water Operating (before Δ pre-paids) 1,039,263 

Water Capital (22,903) 

Reserves 1,487,019 

Net consolidated expenditure (agrees to increase in Net (financial) assets) 1,900,146 



Net Financial Asset Position 

The net financial asset position is the difference between financial assets and liabilities and provides 

an indication of the affordability of future spending.  As at March 31, 2020, the Town was in a net 

financial asset position of $11.1 million  (2019-$9.2million).  The change of during the year is the re-

sult of an increase in cash and decreases in receivables  and properties for resale offset by de-

creased bank loan and long-term debt. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Non–Financial Assets 

Non-financial assets are physical resources used to provide delivery of services to the public.  They 

include purchased, constructed, contributed or developed tangible capital assets and prepaid ex-

penses.  Tangible capital assets comprise the majority of the non-financial asset figure. 

As shown in the accompanying chart, the Town is committed to investment in its infrastructure. Ac-

quisitions of capital assets are the end results of the Town’s and the Water Utility’s capital budgets.  

As with most levels of government, competing infrastructure needs and scarce financial resources 

create a struggle in managing legislated environmental requirements with fiscal responsibility.  

Town Council and the Kentville Water Commission ratified their respective annual capital budgets.  

The Town forecasted budgets for the years 2021-2024, which were approved in principle.  Kentville 

Water Commission tabled a three-year capital investment plan, as required by Nova Scotia Utility 

and Review Board.  

For 2020, on a consolidated basis, including 

amortization  and disposals, the Town’s tangi-

ble capital assets decreased by $(228,968)

(2019-$343,216). 

Annual Report 2020          Page 17



Accumulated Surplus 

The Accumulated Surplus Position is an important financial indicator.  This gauge is comprised of 

all the  surpluses and deficits of the various funds and reserves that are included in the state-

ments, along with the tangible capital assets.   

The yearly change (increase or decrease) in the accumulated surplus is equal to the annual sur-

plus for the year.   

The Town’s accumulated surplus, through its investment in tangible capital assets, has grown 

over the period, indicating a strong foundation upon which future services will be delivered. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In 2020 the accumulated surplus is increased by $1.7 million to $53.4  million, due to the 

increase in net financial assets of $1,900,146, the net decrease in tangible capital assets 

$(228,968) plus the net decrease of other non-financial assets  $(7,612)(detailed on page 16).  

Approximately 79% of the accumulated surplus reflects the Town’s investment in its tangible 

capital assets (2019– 82%). Tangible capital assets cannot be used to pay for the Town’s ongoing 

operations. 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 18



Breakdown of Consolidated Accumulated Surplus  

The Schedule of Accumulated Surplus on the following page details the makeup of the accu-

mulated surplus.   

It is split into segments:   

Reserve funds, which are surpluses that have been accumulated in advance of a future need or 

requirement (similar to a savings account);  

Net ownership in tangible capital assets, including amortization and other write downs (2020 

details are): 

* CWIP = Construction work in progress 

Surpluses (Deficits) of operating and capital funds, which are similar to profits or losses, in 

that financing has exceeded liabilities and leaves a balance (or vice versa if deficits are reported). 

 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 19

 Town Water Total 

Tangible capital assets /CWIP*  $53,655,465  $         18,578,098  72,233,563 

Less: Amortization/Depreciation (Water)          (22,955,270)             (5,739,702)          (28,694,972) 

Less: Deprecation (not rated) (Water) _________0_ (1,313,383) (1,313,383) 

           30,700,195  11,525,013 42,225,208 

Less: Short term debt            (620,803)             (620,803) 

Less: Long term debt            (5,711,470)             (651,400)            (6,362,870) 

Add back: Debt to be recovered (other transactions) 914,392  914,392 

TOTAL 25,282,314   $10,873,613             $36,155,927        



Annual Report 2020          Page 20

Schedule of Accumulated Surplus 2020 2019 

Reserve funds   

  Town operating $717,615 $740,721 

  Town capital 1,369,866 1,212,471 

  Sanitary sewer operating 408,246 209,188 

  Sanitary sewer capital 140,370 110,370 

  Sanitary sewer depreciation 184,013 130,812 

  Kentville Water utility operating 170,620 170,620 

  Kentville Water utility capital 580,710 355,449 

  Kentville Water utility depreciation 949,627 649,196 

  Town perpetual capital   13,354,167 13,198,832 

Total reserve funds (A-40) 17,875,234 16,777,659 

   

Invested in tangible capital assets (net) (page 19 & A-16) 36,155,927 35,740,600 

   

Accumulated surplus (deficit) (fund balance)   

  Town operating (includes Sanitary Sewer Area Service) (A-33) 0 0 

  Town capital (A-35) (954,628) (1,094,791) 

   Kentville Water operating (A-37) 270,023 263,522 

   Kentville Water capital (A-38) 82,102 78,102 

Total (deficit) (602,503) (753,167) 

   

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS  $53,428,658 $51,765,092 



Consolidated Statement of Operations (A-4) 

The Consolidated Statement of Operations is a compilation of the schedules of all the Town’s en-

tities including all operating, all capital and all reserve funds (pages A-33 to A-41).  This statement 

lists all major sources of revenue, such as taxation, grants, user fees, rates and upper-level gov-

ernment transfer payments.  The  expenses for the fiscal year are presented by functional activi-

ty.  

Beyond government transfers, the Town has a good balance of revenue sources with the majority 

coming from taxation, sales of services, rates and perpetual investment fund income. Indicators 

of a government’s vulnerability include revenue streams over which it has no control. One such 

indicator is “Reliance on government transfers”.  The Provincial threshold is 15% of total reve-

nue. The Town’s percentage as cited in the 2019 Financial Condition Index (FCI) is 3.0% (low 

risk).  

Revenue is over budget $797,508, primarily due to excess tax revenue re: savings  in Mandato-

ry contributions for Housing. Increased revenue is also found in Gas Tax Transfer, Sales, Interest 

& Capital gains.   On the expense side of the ledger, before “Other”,  Expenses are under budg-

et $147,223 due to Protective services (staff complement changes), Environmental Health (solid 

waste management), Recreation, Water & Wastewater services.   The Town sold some of its 

“Properties held for sale”, for a net gain of $19,435. 

The difference between the revenue and expense sections is shown as the annual surplus for the 

reporting period.  For 2020, the Statement of Operations discloses an annual surplus of 

$1,663,566 (2019-$448,052).  The annual surplus is combined with the accumulated surplus 

position (beginning of the year) to find the end-of-year accumulated surplus.  The accumulated 

surplus indicates the Town has resources (financial and physical) to provide future services.   At 

March 31, 2020, the accumulated surplus is $53.4 million (2019-$51.8 million). 

The Consolidated Statement of Operations in chart form is below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 21



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow (A-5) 

This statement reports the change in cash and equivalents during the year and shows how the 

Town financed its activities and met its cash requirements for the same period.  The Town gener-

ates cash by raising revenue, converting other financial assets to cash and by external borrowing.  

This statement helps evaluate the Town's liquidity and provides accountability for its use of cash 

resources.  The Town’s liquidity ratio for 2019 was 2.0, assessed as “low risk” in the FCI.  

(The Provincial Financial Condition Index “low risk” threshold is above 1.5) 

Cash resources are generated and consumed through operating, capital, investing and financing 

activities.  Cash flows from operating indicate the Town’s ability to maintain its programs and ser-

vice delivery and repay loans without external sources of financing.  There are no future cash 

flows from the investing in capital assets because they are used to provide programs and deliver 

services. Cash flows from investing would include investments made and realized during the year 

(interest and dividends), while cash flows from financing would include debt issued and paid dur-

ing the year. The net cash position for 2020 is $5,384,582 (2019-$4,261,539)– a increase of 

$1,123,043.     Cash held by fund is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 22

Fund 2020 2019 

General operating bank $810,314 $538,590 

General capital bank 61,991  

Water operating bank 330,624 19,811 

Water capital bank 92,911 93,395 

Reserve banks   

  General operating 567,796 715,793 

  General capital 1,469,064 1,261,857 

  Sanitary sewer operating 209,188 333,669 

  Sanitary sewer capital 140,370 110,370 

  Sanitary sewer depreciation 184,013 130,812 

  Water operating 170,620 113,620 

  Water capital  385,449 289,454 

  Water depreciation 962,242 654,168 

 $5,384,582 $4,261,539 



Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets (A-6) 

This page explains the difference between the Town’s annual surplus reported on the Statement 

of Operations- $1,663,566 and the increase in Net Financial Assets -$1,900,146.  The Net Finan-

cial Asset position is a key indicator of the Town’s financial position and our ability to provide fu-

ture services to residential and corporate citizens. 

One important factor in this statement is the difference in the reporting of the acquisition of capi-

tal assets during the year.  When calculating the annual surplus (on A-4), the Town recognizes 

the cost of using it assets over their useful lives (known as amortization).    When calculating the 

change in net financial assets (on A-6), the Town recognizes the whole cost of purchasing the as-

sets at the time the assets were acquired.   

Budget figures are included on this page, and, when compared to actual figures, they show 

whether the Town is spending more (or less) on capital purchases than it had planned.  Simply 

put, in the long run, overspending on capital acquisition can affect future service delivery (in debt 

servicing from operations) while underspending may find the Town’s capital assets deteriorating.   

The 2020 surplus of $1,663,566 is comprised of (1) a decrease in tangible capital assets (net of 

amortization & disposals) of $ 228,968, (2) a decrease in prepaid and other expenses $7,612 and 

(3) the increase in net financial assets $1,900,146. 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 23



Schedule of General Operating Fund & Sanitary Sewer Area Service (A 33-
34) 

This report represents the Town of Kentville Operating Fund and the Sanitary Sewer Area Ser-

vice.  It summarizes the net revenue from operations.  Transfers to-and-from our own funds are 

not included in revenue or expenditures but are identified as “Net transfers”.  The schedule re-

veals a combined operating surplus of $348,792 (2019-$24,805). 

Revenue is over budget $242,654 due to interest revenue, conditional transfers & wastewater 

rates.  Expenditures are under budget $179,099 due to staffing changes in Protective services- 

police, savings in solid waste management and recreation services along with decreased 

wastewater expenditures. 

After accounting for transfers between our own funds which includes long-term debt recovery, 

the annual surplus is $348,792 (2019-$24,805).  

Separating the two above-noted entities combined on this statement, the 2020 surplus for the 

Town General Operating Fund (shown on page A-34) is $149,734 (2019-$24,805), while the 

2020 surplus for the Sanitary Sewer Area Service is $198,058 (2019– $NIL). The entire 

2020 surplus will be transferred to the Town’s operating reserve fund, as per Provincial direction 

as follows: $149,734 to the Town Operating reserve fund and $198,058 to the Sanitary Sewer 

Area Fund Operating reserve.   

The following graphs indicate the funding sources and how the funds were spent in the Town Op-

erating fund. 

OPERATING FUND– 19/20 

 

     Revenue                                                           Expenditures 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 24



Schedule of Town of Kentville General Capital Fund (A 35-36) 

This fund accrues the Town’s tangible capital assets and related amortization along with the short 

and long-term borrowing obtained to partially finance these acquisitions.  Revenue is comprised 

of  contributions from outside sources, proceeds on sale of assets and grants from Federal & Pro-

vincial governments.   Expenditures reflect the current investment in the Town’s infrastructure - 

the capital assets acquired in 2019/2020. New assets totaled $1,899,134, including Work-in-

Progress assets.  Capital projects were financed by Operations ($79,676), various Capital Re-

serves ($404,792), Contributions ($34,180), Federal National Disaster Mitigation Fund ($2,636)

Province NS ($10,900); Federal Gas Tax Reserve ($843,106);  Authorized Temporary Borrowing 

($523,354) and Cash ($490).  “Properties held for sale” was written down due to loss on sale. 

Total expenditures in the capital fund decreased from $2.7 million in 2019 to $1.9 million in 

2020.  The closing Fund Balance for 2020 is $ (954,628) compared to $(1,094,791) in 2019.  

The Town’s total ownership in its capital assets is itemized on page 19 of this report and on page 

A-36 of the financial statements and makes up part of the Town of Kentville Capital Fund. The 

Town’s ownership in capital assets ($25,282,318) plus the Fund Balance make up the Town Capi-

tal fund’s accumulated surplus of $24,327,690 (2019-$23,585,202). 

2020 construction projects included renewal of Canaan Avenue sidewalk & street, Condon Avenue 

storm water renewal, continuation of the Park Street West sidewalk funded by Federal Gas Tax.  

Other projects included  the purchases of Police and Transportation equipment, renewal of sec-

tions of Campbell Road and Chester Avenue, creation of a public garden & new brand-messaging 

signage.  Under Recreation, a new Zamboni was purchased, the pool and its change room were 

renewed, a new bike trail was created, playgrounds received new elements and two recreation 

studies were carried out.        

CAPITAL FUND– 19/20 

                             Revenue                                                        Expenditures 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 25



Schedule of Water  Operating Fund (A-37) 

This page represents the Kentville Water Utility Operating Fund and summarizes the revenue 

and expenditures from operations along with transfers and depreciation.  Transfers to-and-from 

our own funds are not included in revenue or expenditure but they do make up a portion of “Net 

transfers”.   

Revenue is comprised primarily of metered rates along with the public fire protection charge to 

the Town of Kentville and the County of Kings, which is mandated by the Nova Scotia Utility and 

Review Board.   Expenditures account for the operations and maintenance of the utility and the 

treatment, transmission and distribution of potable water to Kentville and surrounding areas. 

Net revenues are $1,035,509 (2019- $935,463).  After including transfers between our own 

funds and depreciation adjustments, the increase in fund balance is $6,501 (2019-$10,200). 

Kentville Water Commission pays a dividend to the Town of Kentville Operating Fund (as the 

owner of the utility).  The amount transferred in 2020 was $100,000 (2019- $100,000).  Be-

fore this  transfer, the Utility’s surplus was $ 106,501 (2019-$110,200). 

The “Closing fund balance”, which is equivalent to  its “accumulated surplus”, is $270,023 

(2019-$263,522).    

The following graphs indicate the revenue sources and how the funds were spent in the Water 

Utility Operating fund. 

WATER OPERATING FUND-19/20 

 

 

                             Revenue      Expenditures 

Annual Report 2020          Page 26



Schedule of Water Capital Fund (A 38-39) 

The Water Utility Capital Fund records the capital acquisitions, depreciation and long-term bor-

rowing for the Kentville Water Utility.   

Revenue– reflects payment of a water connection by a county customer to the Kentville Water 

utility and increases the fund balance. 

Expenditures reflect the current investment in the Utility’s infrastructure - the capital assets ac-

quired in 2019/2020. Acquisitions in 2020 totaled $26,903. Capital projects were financed by 

the Depreciation Reserve ($26,903)  

Net expenditure in the Water Utility Capital Fund decreased from  $428,811 in 2019 to $26,903 

in 2020.   For 2020, the Water Utility’s Capital Fund Balance is $ 82,102 (2019-$78,102).   

The Utility’s ownership in its tangible capital assets (TCA) is itemized on page 19 of this report 

and on page A-39 of the financial statements and makes up part of the Water Capital Fund. The 

Utility’s ownership in its assets is comprised of: total asset acquisitions less total depreciation, 

amortization and outstanding debt.  The sum of the TCA and Fund Balance equates to the total 

accumulated surplus for the Water Capital Fund of $10,955,711 (2019-$11,138,709).  

2020 construction projects included yearly projects such as acquisition of meters and pumps, 

along with the connection of a new service.   

 WATER CAPITAL FUND 19/20 

Revenue      Expenditures 

 

 

   

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 27



Reserve Funds (A 40-41) 

Reserve funds increased in 2020 by $1,097,575 to $17.9 million. The increase is due to  in-

crease in investments in Town’s Perpetual Reserve fund, offset by an increase in deferred reve-

nue and a decrease in other liabilities.  Town is committed to maintaining healthy reserve funds 

but, of note, the Perpetual Reserve fund follows its own set of guidelines.  Some reserve funds 

are identified for future capital funding or for future operating purposes. 

 

 

Long-Term Debt  Outstanding (Principal) 

Long-Term principal debt levels decreased in 2020 by $521,150 (see page A-13 Note 7) .  Below is a 

chart of outstanding long-term debt issues over the last six (6) years.  Town Council prefers to 

keep its long-term borrowing in the $ 1 million range and its average debt service ratio (DSR) 

between 10-12% of own-source revenue over the 5-year capital investment plan. 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 28

RESERVE BALANCES 
as at March 31, 2020 

Operating:$717,615 
Capital: $1,369,866 

Perpetual:  $13,354,167 
Sanitary Sewer: $732,629 

Water: $1,700,957 
TOTAL: $17,875,234 

2020 

New Debt Issued: $731,400 

Principal Repaid: $(1,252,550) 

PRINCIPAL OUTSTANDING  
March 31, 2020 

 
Town $5,450,430 
Water $  651,400 
Sewer $ 261,040 

TOTAL: $6,362,870 



Operating Budget 2020/2021 

 

The Town’s Operating Budget reflects the vision and goal statement developed by Council and its 

residents.  It’s creation and adoption is one of the most important tasks completed by Council 

each year.  The ratified Operating Budget becomes the guiding document for the Town’s various 

departments to provide service delivery to the Town’s residential and corporate citizens.  The 

Town’s budget team faced many challenges during the 2020/21 budget process. The biggest 

challenge was unexpected– the COVID-19 pandemic, which swept the world.  Nova Scotia and 

Kentville were not immune. The Province declared a state of emergency in mid-March, which 

closed businesses and our facilities.  Until COVID-19 is eradicated, we must learn new ways to 

live safely with this virus.  The “new normal” is evolving every day.  Phrases such as “social dis-

tancing” and “self isolation” are commonplace terms these days.  The end result for Kentville is 

the cancellation of our 20/21 festivals and events, along with many Recreation programs.  So, 

the Operating Budget looks quite different from past years. As of today, the state of emergency 

has not been lifted; however, businesses are permitted to open following certain protocols devel-

oped in concert with the Province.  

Some details on the 20/21 Operating Budget include:  the Provincial assessment CAP equated to 

1.0% (last year 2.9%) and provided some new revenue for 20/21 operations. The Town’s assessment 

base increased overall by 4.2%, mainly due to extensive new residential developments. Many of 

the Recreation programs and other Town-related social gatherings were removed from the budg-

et due to COVID-19. The Town’s Operating Budget objectives were to maintain the tax rates and 

preserve our high standards for service delivery.   

Senior managers presented the Operating Fund budget book to Council on May 20, 2020.  This 

meeting culminated in property tax rates, which were forwarded to Town Council for ratification 

on May 25, 2020.  Despite the afore-mentioned situation, for the year 2020/2021, Council was 

able to hold the total Residential tax rate at the 19/20 level.  The total Commercial rate 

was reduced by 1 cent/$100. 

 

Capital Investment Plan 2021 to 2025 

The Town’s Capital Investment Plan encompasses 5 years.  It was presented to Council of May 19 

and again on May 29, 2020, where Council ratified the current year and approved the remaining 

4 years in principle.  The Capital Program for 2020/21 totals $2.1 million. Projects include infra-

structure work on several roads, sidewalks and storm sewers, continuation of the sidewalk to the 

Town boundary in the west end, the purchase of various equipment for Policing, Transportation 

and Recreation, renewal of the Arena parking lot with light standards, the creation of new green 

spaces, addition of new playgrounds and the start of a dog park. 

 

Annual Report 2020          Page 29



Kentville continues to be on fire with development!   

Calkin Building– There are several tenants currently renting spaces in the Calkin building.  The 

building remains for sale with a local realtor. There is much interest in the building with many 

showings over the past year. 

Miner’s Landing development is progressing in the east end of town.  Two of the four buildings 

will be completed in 2020, with a third under construction and a fourth building planned thereaf-

ter.  A trail addition will be built this year connecting the complex with the Town’s trail system. 

Kentville Bridge– Replacement of the bridge over the Cornwallis River continued over the past 

year, with pilings and girders put in place in 2019.  The new deck was recently poured. The ap-

proaches to the bridge will be completed in 2020.   

Kentville Business Park–  In 2015, the Town purchased 42.1 acres of vacant land in the 

Kentville Business Park to actively pursue selling the land to industry and business. Since our pur-

chase, many lots have been sold.  The Town expanded the infrastructure creating new lots and 

continued interest in the park. 

FW Robinson land—   The Robinson land was sold in the fall of 2019.  Initial plans for a building 

include a commercial space on the lower level and residential spaces on the upper level.  Con-

struction should begin sometime this year. 

Former KCA lands- Enqore Developments submitted plans for a mixed-use residential communi-

ty on the old KCA lands on School Street.  Construction should begin this fiscal year. 

 

Chrysalis House intends to break ground in 2020 for its new facility on River Street. 

 

To conclude this report, I wish to thank Town Council for its support and direction over the past 

year.  My gratitude goes also to the CAO, the senior management team and the Town’s staff for 

their contributions in pushing our visions forward throughout the year. I especially want to thank 

my co-workers in the Finance Department for their commitment to the Town of Kentville and their 

pride in providing excellent service delivery to our residential and corporate citizens. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Debra Crowell CMM CLGA 

Director of Finance          June 29, 2020
   

        

Annual Report 2020          Page 30



1 

29 June 2020 
 
RE: Town of Kentville Audit Committee Members 
The Town of Kentville audit was conducted by the firm of 
Kent and Duffett Chartered Professional Accountants 
during the months of May and June 2020.   
 
The Town of Kentville council has committed to an Audit 
Committee composed of three members of council and 
two members of the public as recommended by the JMAT 
report: 

Three members of council were re-appointed in 
February 2020 for 2020-2021: 

Mayor Sandra Snow (Chair - voting);  
Councillor Eric Bolland (voting); and 
Deputy Mayor Cate Savage (voting). 

One member of the public was appointed in June 
2018: 

Ms Susan MacDougall. (voting). 
One member of the public was appointed in June 
2019: 

Mr Peter Rainforth. (voting). 
Two members of Staff: 

Ms Deb Crowell, Director of Finance; and 
Ms Kelly Rice, Chief Administrative Officer. 

 
The Audit Committee met on 29 June 2020, to discuss 
the results and conduct of the audit with Mr Andy Forse.  
Additionally, he delivered the audit statements and 
management letters.

      
Mayor   

Sandra Snow 
354 Main Street 

Kentville, NS 
B4N 1K6 

 
 

902-679-2502 
902-599-1317 (C)  

ssnow@kentville.ca 

 



2 

The Audit Committee recommendations are as follows: it 
is recommended that the council accept the audit 
report and documentation as presented. 
 
The firm of Kent and Duffett Chartered Professional 
Accountants competed and were awarded a five-year 
auditing services contract with the Town of Kentville last 
year.   
 

The Audit Committee recommends that the Town of 
Kentville reappoint the firm of Kent and Duffett 
Chartered Professional Accountants to provide 
audit services for the year 2020/2021.  The firm 
was previously selected and approved for a five-
year contract with the Town of Kentville.  Re-
appointment occurs annually as a matter of form. 
 
As per G57 Committees of Council Policy:   It is also 
recommended that the council appoint the 
following citizen committee voting members to 
the 2020/2021 Audit Committee: 

Ms Susan MacDougall; and 
Mr Peter Rainforth. 

 
 
 
 

Sandra Snow  
Mayor 


	00 June 29 Council Agenda.pdf (p.1-2)
	3.a May 29 2020 DRAFT Capital Budget Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.3-5)
	3.b June 8 2020 DRAFT Council Minutes.pdf (p.6-12)
	3.c June 17 2020 DRAFT Public Hearing Minutes.pdf (p.13-16)
	4.a Second Reading Stoneridge - June 2020.pdf (p.17)
	4.b Municipal Signs Land Use Bylaw - June 2020.pdf (p.18-19)
	4.c VCLA Land Use Bylaw - June 2020.pdf (p.20-25)
	4.d Noise By Law - June 2020.pdf (p.26-34)
	4.e Downtown space allocation - June 2020.pdf (p.35-36)
	5.a.1 Councillor Andrew Report - June 2020.pdf (p.37-38)
	5.a.2 Councilor Bolland Report - June 2020.pdf (p.39-40)
	5.a.3 Deputy Mayor Gerrard Report - June 2020.pdf (p.41-42)
	5.a.4 Councillor Maxwell Report - June 2020.pdf (p.43-44)
	5.a.5 Councillor Savage Report - June 2020.pdf (p.45-47)
	5.a.6 Councillor Pulsifer Report - June 2020.pdf (p.48-50)
	5.b Mayors Report - June 2020.pdf (p.51-53)
	6.a Correspondence - Peerless - June 2020.pdf (p.54)
	6.b Corresponcence - Municipality of Barrington - June 2020.pdf (p.55)
	7.a RFD Renaming Cornwallis St - June 2020.pdf (p.56-58)
	7.b Town Hall Renovations - June 2020.pdf (p.59-60)
	7.c.1 Consolidated Financial Statements - June 2020.pdf (p.61-124)
	7.c.2 Annual Financial Report - June 2020.pdf (p.125-154)
	7.c.3 motion to council for Audit Committee June 2020.pdf (p.155-156)

	Text39: Eric Bolland
	Text40: June 23/2020
	Text41: June 23/2020
	Text42: Name change of Cornwallis Street
	Text43: Around the province,the name Cornwallis is slowly being removed from public buildings or infrastructures due to its offensiveness to the First Nations people. Looking back on the town's history: Former Kentville Town Council decided to drop the name The Cornwallis bridge in favour of a past Mayor. Annapolis Valley First Nation submitted an application to GeoNova, the body that governs place names in NS in the spring of 2016 to change the name of the Cornwallis River. They were unsuccessful.A petition with hundreds of signatures surfaced when the name Cornwallis was still on the construction site of the new bridge (Sept 2017)Jan 2018: Halifax Council voted to remove the statue from Halifax park Cornwallis Inn has been re-named The Main Street Inn recently. Changing the name of this street in our town further demonstrates our respect for the residents in this town and all Nova Scotians, especially the First Nations people and the Acadians.
	Text44: 
	Text45: Name change of the current Cornwallis Street
	Text46: Once Council has made their decision, staff will make the necessary changes.
	Text47: 
	CheckBox1: Off
	CheckBox2: Yes
	CheckBox3: Off
	CheckBox4: Off
	CheckBox5: Off
	CheckBox6: Off
	CheckBox7: Off
	CheckBox8: Yes
	CheckBox9: Yes
	CheckBox10: Off
	CheckBox11: Off
	CheckBox12: Yes
	CheckBox13: Off
	CheckBox14: Off
	CheckBox15: Yes
	CheckBox16: Yes
	CheckBox17: Yes
	CheckBox18: Yes
	CheckBox19: Yes
	CheckBox20: Yes
	CheckBox21: Yes
	CheckBox22: Yes
	CheckBox23: Yes
	CheckBox24: Off
	CheckBox25: Yes
	CheckBox26: Off
	CheckBox27: Off
	Text48: 
	Text49: There will be some work to make the civic address changes and name change with the Province.
	Text50: 
	Text51: 
	Text52: 
	Text53: 


